
William A. "Bert" Miller, III
Mayor
Bernie Gessner
Councilmember
Josh M. Fultz
Councilmember

Grant E. Holt
Mayor Pro-Tem

Pattie Pederson
Councilmember

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

FEBRUARY 13, 2023

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 13th of February, 2023 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Presentation to the Navasota Police Department Chief of Police by Grimes
County Crime Stoppers [Connie Clements]

(b) Introduction of two new employees [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]

(c) Years of service award - Public Works employee, Rodrigo Hernandez (10 Years)
[Peggy Johnson, HR Director]

(d) Board and Commission update [City Council]

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]



5. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and
testimony regarding an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a
1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas, 77868. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]

6. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23,
approving an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre
tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas, 77868. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]

7. Consideration and possible action on an interlocal cooperation agreement between
the City of Navasota, Grimes County and J&H Navasota Development, LLC, for the
improvement of County Road 424. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services
Director]

8. Consideration and possible action approving Resolution No. 729-23, in support for
the application of Navasota Manor APTS to the Texas Department of Housing and
Community Affairs for the 2023 Competitive Nine-Percent Housing Tax Credits to
rehabilitate affordable rental housing in connection with Navasota Manor. [Lupe
Diosdado, Development Services Director]

9. Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May
6, 2023 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5. [Susie M.
Homeyer, City Secretary]

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la
elecci'on del 6 de mayo de 2023 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las
posiciones 4 and 5.

10. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution No. 730-23, approving
a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the
Navasota Independent School District. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la Resolución No. 730-23, que
aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado
de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota.



11. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A&B. Approve the minutes from January 2023 and the Municipal Court Report for
January 2023.

C. Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, rezoning 35.13 acres,
more particularly described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, from A/O:
Agriculture/Open space district to 'Pecan Groves Estates PUD' a planned unit
development.

D. Approve second reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending Chapter 3
Building regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and Freestanding Signs.

E. Approve first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation with
other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the
Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023, authorizing the hiring of lawyers and
rate experts, authorizing the City's participation to the full extent permitted by law
at the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

12. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 7TH OF FEBRUARY, 2023

/JW/

BY: JASON WEEKS, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 7th of February, 2023 at 11:19 AM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 7TH OF FEBRUARY, 2023



/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #4 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023 
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager 
Department: Administration 

Report Resolution Ordinance 

Exhibits: Years of Service Award 

AGENDA ITEM #4 
Staff Report: 

(a) Presentation to the Navasota Police Department Chief of Police by Crime
Stoppers [Connie Clements]

(b) Introduction of new employees [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]

(c) Years of service award – Rodrigo Hernandez (10 Years) [Peggy Johnson,
HR Director]

(d) Board and Commission update [City Council]

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition
of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about
upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information
regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or
employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public
health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of
the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 

(a) Connie Clements, with Grimes County Crime Stoppers, will present the NPD
Chief of Police with a traveling plaque that list the recipients of Officers of the
Year on it. This plaque will remain with the Navasota Police Department for a
year until the next Grimes County Crime Stoppers annual awards banquet in

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 

Account Number: N/A 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 

Amount Requested: N/A 

Budgeted Item: Yes No 



2024. Additionally, we will honor the recipients of the Meritorious Service 
Award, Marla Gurka and Officer of the Year Award, Travis Mullins. 

(b) HR Director, Peggy Johnson will introduce two new city employees.

(c) HR Director, Peggy Johnson will present Public Works employee, Rodrigo
Hernandez with his 10-year service award.

(d) If applicable, City Council will provide Board and Commission updates.

(e) Staff and City Council will give updates on other events coming up.

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 

None 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

  
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager Date 

2/6/23





 
 

AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 
 

FEBRUARY 13, 2023 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/30/2023 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Presentation to Mike Mize/Police Dept.- traveling plaque from Crime  
    Stoppers; (b) Introduction of two new employees; (c) Years of service award – Rodrigo  
    Hernandez (10 Years); (d) Board and Commission update; and (e) Reports from staff and  
    City Council 
5. Public hearing – annexation of 1.310 acres -Jim Hassell 
6. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23 – annexation of 1.310 acres – Jim Hassell 
7. Interlocal agreement – CR 424 – J & H Development 
8. Resolution No. 729-23 – rehabilitation of Navasota Manor 
9. Order of election 
10.Resolution No. 730-23 – election contract 
11.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of January 2023; (b) Municipal Court report  
    for January 2023; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, zoning change for Pecan  
    Grove Estates; (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending ordinance on  
    Freeway and Freestanding signs; and (e) 1st reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, annual  
    participation with other cities – Entergy Texas 
12.Adjourn  
 

 

FEBRUARY 27, 2023 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/13/2023 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Consent agenda: (a) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, annual participation with other  
    cities – Entergy Texas; (b) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23, annexation 
6. Adjourn  
 

 
March 13, 2023 

 

March 27, 2023 
 

April 10, 2023 – Executive Session – Evaluation of Municipal Judge – 2 year 
 

April 24, 2023 

 
May 8, 2022 

 
May 15, 2023 – Canvass election results, elect a Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem 

 
May 22, 2023 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

Exhibit: 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and 
testimony regarding an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 
1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes 
County, Texas, 77868. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City of Navasota received a voluntary petition for annexation by property owner 
James C. Hassell for a 1.310-acre located out of the James Whitesides Survey, 
Abstract No. 62. The area proposed for annexation is located at the end of Putter Place 
Court in Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3 and is contiguous with the western city limits. 
 
Staff has developed an Ordinance that confirms all completed public hearing steps and 
approves the annexation service plan that outlines the current and proposed city 
services provided to the affected area. 
 
Residents noticed the developer working on the 1.310-acre site prior to approvals. Staff 
investigated further and found that the developer did begin work on this site in January 
2023 prior to the required approvals. However, the City of Navasota has since issued 
a “stop work order” with the developer to stop all construction until the site has gone 
through the proper steps. Additionally, staff has notified residents in writing on Putter 
Place Court and Ace Court about this public hearing and the plans the developer has 
submitted for the 1.310-acre site. Staff is aware that residents are concerned about 
numerous items related to this development such as lot size not consistent with others 
on in same phase at Pecan Lakes, the proposed double cul-de-sac, lack of 
communication with the residents, possible decreased property values, and homes not 
consistent with others built on same street. There are multiple other steps that will need 
to be taken by the developer prior to construction beginning such as zoning change 
(which will come before P&Z Board and City Council) and preliminary plat that will need 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  



to conform to the zone change (which will come to P&Z Board). City staff recommends 
City Council conduct a public hearing to receive public comment regarding the voluntary 
annexation process for a 1.310-acre tract of land in Pecan Lakes subdivision. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and 
testimony regarding an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 
1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes 
County, Texas, 77868. 
 
Public hearing opened at _______ p.m. 
 
 
Public hearing closed at _______ p.m. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/6/23



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Ordinance No.1017-23 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23, 
approving an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre 
tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, 
Texas, 77868. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City of Navasota received a voluntary petition for annexation by property owner 
James C. Hassell for a 1.310-acre located out of the James Whitesides Survey, 
Abstract No. 62. The area proposed for annexation is located at the end of Putter Place 
Court in Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3 and is contiguous with the Western City Limits. 
 
The attached Ordinance confirms all completed public hearing steps and approves the 
annexation service plan that outlines the current and proposed city services provided 
to the affected area. 
 
Residents noticed the developer working on the 1.310-acre site prior to approvals. Staff 
investigated further and found that the developer did begin work on this site in January 
2023 prior to the required approvals. However, the City of Navasota has since issued 
a “stop work order” with the developer to stop all construction until the site has gone 
through the proper steps. Additionally, staff has notified residents in writing on Putter 
Place Court and Ace Court about the public hearing and the plans the developer has 
submitted for the 1.310-acre site. Staff is aware that residents are concerned about 
numerous items related to this development such as lot size not consistent with others 
on in same phase at Pecan Lakes, the proposed double cul-de-sac, lack of 
communication with the residents, possible decreased property values, and homes not 
consistent with others built on same street. There are multiple other steps that will need 
to be taken by the developer prior to construction beginning such as zoning change 
(which will come before P&Z Board and City Council) and preliminary plat that will need 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



to conform to the zone change (which will come to P&Z Board). Since there are multiple 
other steps that must be taken prior to construction, City staff is recommending 
approval of Ordinance No. 1017-23, which outlines the voluntary annexation process 
for a 1.310-acre tract of land. Staff will work with the developer to make sure residents 
concerns are addressed within the zoning change and preliminary plat process. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny the first reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23, approving an 
annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre tract of land 
in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

Type text here 2/6/23



 

 

1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1017-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 1.310 ACRES OF LAND, 
HEREINAFTER MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR ALL MUNICIPAL 
PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL NECESSARY AND REQUIRED 
LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; PROVIDING 
THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF THE CITY AND 
THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, SHALL BE 
ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF OTHER 
CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND ORDINANCES 
NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER ADOPTED; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality 

as defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government 

Code, authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in accordance with the 

procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the 

property owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous to 

the present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 



 

 

2 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and on the 

City’s website and the public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with 

applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas and the property owner negotiated 

and executed a Service Plan Agreement for the extension of municipal services 

into the area to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given and 

held as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the 

period of time as prescribed by law;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines 

and limits of the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the said 

area of land, which is described as follows: 

All that certain 1.310-acre tract of land in the James J. Whitesides Survey, A-62, 

Grimes County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached 



 

 

3 

hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed to 

the City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of said 

citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, 

codes, resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan Agreement which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “B” is hereby incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, 

Texas, heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to 

include the aforementioned area as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to 

perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of 

the City of Navasota, Texas to add the territory hereby annexed as required by 

law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a 

certified copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform 

all other acts necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation 

of territory by this Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph 

or provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or 



 

 

4 

if any portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of 

Navasota, Texas, for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect any 

other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of this 

Ordinance or the application of any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, 

word, paragraph or provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The City Council 

declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of this 

Ordinance and would have annexed the valid property without the invalid part, 

and as to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered and 

enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, and 

that notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was given as 

required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 13th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2023. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 27TH DAY OF 
FEBRUARY, 2023. 
 
 



 

 

5 

                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
        
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
of a  

1.310 Acre Tract 
James Whitesides Survey, A‐62, Grimes County, Texas 

December 7, 2020 
 
All certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in Grimes County, Texas, out of the James 
Whitesides Survey, Abstract No. 62, being a part of Tract Two, called 27.49 acres, as described in a 
Warranty Deed with Vendor' Lien from Torres Salvage, Inc. to James C. Hassell, et ux, dated March 
16th, 2018, of record in Volume 1684, Page 451 of the Real Property Records of Grimes County, Texas, 
being a part of a called 1.2275 acre tract as described in a General Warranty Deed from Robert L. 
Waltrip to Meaux Hassell LLC, dated January 25, 2018, of record in Volume 1676, Page 324 of the Real 
Property Records of Grimes County, Texas and more fully described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at a found 5/8 inch iron rod, in fence line, for a Northwest corner of Pecan Lakes 
Estates, Phase 3, Section 1, (Plat ‐ Doc. No. 309888), the Northwest corner of Sand Trap Lane (60 ft. 
ROW), the Northeast corner of a 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to be conveyed to Grimes County, 
in the generally fenced and North line of the called 1.2275 acre tract mentioned above and same being 
in the South line of a called 9.9 acre tract as described in a Deed to Charles Greenwood, Jr. (1061/421), 
from which a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at the base of a t‐post, for the Northwest corner of said 1.2275 
acre tract and the Northerly Northeast corner of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above brs.  
S 87°19'06" W, 105.47 ft.; 
 
THENCE S 02°44'20" E, 60.00 ft., along a portion of the West line of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1 and Sand Trap Lane to a found 5/8 inch iron rod for the Southwest corner thereof, the 
Southeast corner of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date, the Northeast corner and TRUE PLACE OF 
BEGINNING of the tract of land herein described; 
 
THENCE S 02°44'20" E, 352.39 ft., along a portion of the West line of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1 to a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at t‐post, for the Southeast corner of the called 1.2275 acre tract 
mentioned above, a Northeast corner of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above and same being 
the Southeast corner of the tract of land herein described; 
 
THENCE S 87°15'07" W, along the South line of the called 1.2275 acre tract mentioned above, a North 
line of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above and PASSING at 15.00 ft. a set 5/8 inch iron rod for 
the Easterly Northeast of a 10.00 acre tract surveyed this date, in the West line of a called 15 ft. 
drainage easement ("to be dedicated in the future") per the Final Plat of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1, continuing along said lines and PASSING at 105.62 ft. a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at t‐post, for 
the Southwest corner of said 1.2275 acre tract and an interior corner of said 27.49 acre tract and 
continuing for a TOTAL DISTANCE of 162.09 ft. to a set 5/8 inch iron rod for the Southwest corner of 
the tract of land herein described and same being an interior corner of said 10.00 acre tract surveyed 
this date; 
 
THENCE N 02°43'02" W, 351.60 ft., along an East line of said 10.00 acre tract surveyed this date to a set 
5/8 inch iron rod for the Northerly Northeast corner thereof, the Northwest corner of the tract of land 
herein described and same being in a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date; 
 
THENCE N 86°19'55" E, 56.96 ft., along a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to a set 
5/8 inch iron rod for a common angle point in line for corner; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

THENCE N 87°19'06" E, 105.01 ft., along a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to the 
TRUE PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 1.310 acres of land. 
 
Basis of Bearings: Grid North, State Plane Coordinate System of 1983, Central Zone, Leica RTK Network. 
 

____________ 
Steven M. Wisnoski              12‐07‐2020 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6006 
Job #: 2014‐04‐03‐01 

 
 











 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Interlocal Cooperation Agreement 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
 

Consideration and possible action on an interlocal cooperation agreement between 
the City of Navasota, Grimes County and J&H Navasota Development, LLC, for the 
improvement of County Road 424.  
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 4 is nearing completion and there will soon be new homes 
starting construction. The current condition of County Road 424 is not conducive for the 
increased traffic that will be generated by the new phase of the subdivision. 
 

 
 
J&H Navasota Development, LLC, the developer of Pecan Lakes Estates is proposing 
to improve CR 424 to a concrete roadway with similar characteristics of the streets 
found in the subdivision. Since CR 424 is located within the ETJ the City of Navasota 
(City), has regulating authority over any improvements to the roadway. 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



To streamline the development process the proposed Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreement (ILCA) designates Grimes County (County) regulatory authority over the 
design and construction management of the project to County standards vs adopted 
City requirements. The County will be responsible for the survey, engineering design 
and construction management of the project. J&H Navasota Development will be 
tasked to complete the construction. 
 
The current roadway is approximately 14 feet wide; the proposed improvements will 
widen the road to 25 feet wide with drainage related improvements. 
 
The proposed ILCA has been reviewed by City’s legal counsel as well as the County 
Attorney and proposed contractor. Staff recommends approving the ILCA for the 
improvement of CR 424. The ILCA will be considered at Grimes County Commissioners 
Court at a future meeting.  

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny the interlocal cooperation agreement between the City of 
Navasota, Grimes County and J&H Navasota Development, LLC, for the 
improvement of County Road 424.  

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/6/23



















 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Resolution No. 729-23, PK Companies 
Resume, and Scope of Work 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
 
Consideration and possible action approving Resolution No. 729-23, in support for 
the application of Navasota Manor APTS to the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs for the 2023 Competitive Nine-Percent Housing Tax Credits to 
rehabilitate affordable rental housing in connection with Navasota Manor. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff was contacted by Tim Smith, representing PK Companies, the ownership 
company of Navasota Manor Apartments regarding a 2023 Competitive Housing Tax 
Credit application for the rehabilitation of Navasota Manor located in Navasota.  
 

 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



The estimated renovation dollar amount per unit (total of 40 units) is $45,000. Navasota 
Manor’s Housing Tax Credit Program application may qualify for additional points if a 
Resolution of support and evidence of commitment of development funding from the 
governing body of the city are approved. For rural communities like Navasota the 
minimum commitment is $250, which can be achieved by waiving permitting fees. 
 
Previously, the City Manager had emailed each council member an email letter he had 
received about this project. Staff are just now receiving this request from Navasota 
Manor Apartments asking for formal support for this project. Since this request is not 
adding any new units to Navasota, staff is recommending City Council to approve 
Resolution No. 729-23 in support of Navasota Manor APTS rehabilitating Navasota 
Manor in Navasota. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny Resolution No. 729-23, in support for the application of 
Navasota Manor APTS to the Texas Department of Housing and Community 
Affairs for the 2023 Competitive Nine-Percent Housing Tax Credits to rehabilitate 
affordable rental housing in connection with Navasota Manor. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

 

 

 

2/6/23



 

RESOLUTION NO. 729-23 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, 

IN SUPPORT FOR THE APPLICATION OF PK NAVASOTA MANOR, LP TO THE 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS FOR 2023 

COMPETITIVE NINE-PERCENT HOUSING TAX CREDITS TO REHABILITATE 

AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING IN CONNECTION WITH NAVASOTA MANOR 

WHEREAS, PK Navasota Manor LP has proposed a development for affordable rental 

housing at 1015 Church St., Navasota, TX 77868 named Navasota Manor in the City of 

Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, PK Navasota Manor LP has advised that it intends to submit an application 

to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for 2023 Competitive 9% 

Housing Tax Credits for Navasota Manor 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the rules that govern the HTC program, an application 

may qualify for points for a Resolution of Support and evidence of a commitment of 

development funding from the governing body of the city in which the proposed 

development site is located. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT:  

The City of Navasota, acting through its governing body, hereby confirms that it 

supports the proposed Navasota Manor, TDHCA# 23102, located at 1015 Church St., 

Navasota, TX 77868 and that this formal action has been taken to put on record the 

opinion expressed by the City of Navasota, and 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that as provided for in 10 TAC §11.3(c), it is expressly 

acknowledged and confirmed that the City of Navasota has more than twice the state 

average of units per capita supported by Housing Tax Credits or Private Activity Bonds, 

and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Navasota hereby supports the proposed 

Navasota Manor, and confirms that its governing body has voted specifically to approve 

the rehabilitation of the Development and to authorize an allocation of Housing Tax 

Credits for the Development pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code §2306.6703(a)(4), and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Navasota, acting through its governing body, 

hereby approves a commitment to Navasota Manor of permanent funding assistance in 



 

an amount of $250 which, in the City’s discretion, may be in the form of a grant, 

reduced fees, or gap funding, and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the 

funding commitment by the City of Navasota set forth in this Resolution shall be 

contingent on: (i) the Applicant securing HTCs from TDHCA in the amount sufficient to 

rehabilitate Navasota Manor and (ii) development approvals by the City of Navasota in 

connection with the rehabilitation of Navasota Manor, and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that for and on behalf of the Governing Body, William “Bert” 

Miller, Mayor are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to certify these 

resolutions to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs. 

 

DULY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Navasota, Texas on this 

13th day of February, 2023. 

 

_________________________ 

     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



Navasota Manor Apartments – Narrative Description 

 

Navasota Manor Apartments is a elderly apartment community that consists of a 40-unit family 

development. The property is located at 1015 Church Street, Navasota, TX 77868.  Navasota Manor 

Apartments consists of 4 two-bedroom apartments and 36 one-bedroom apartments. 

Navasota Manor Apartments is operated under the auspices of U.S.D.A. Rural Development and has 39 

rental assistance units where residents pay 30% of their income for rent minus a utility allowance. The 

heat, hot and cold water, sewage and trash removal is included in the basic rental rate.  

The scope of work is anticipated to be $45,000/unit for construction hard costs with a total 

development budget, including anticipated acquisition and soft costs, of $120,000/unit. This will include 

re-shingling the roof, adding vinyl siding, replacing entry light fixtures, repairing sidewalks and the 

parking lot for the exterior. The existing maintenance and leasing office and community room will 

receive improvements, while other interior improvements will include hot water heaters, appliances, 

cabinets, plumbing and electrical fixtures, interior doors and hardware, carpet, vinyl, and paint. All ADA 

and 504 issues will be resolved. HVAC systems will also be replaced. Essentially, the Navasota Manor 

Apartments will be refurbished to like new condition.  

There will be three sources of funding to finance this development. The assumption of the existing RD 

515 Loan, a subsequent RD 538 loan, and LIHTC Equity. 



 



PK DEVELOPMENT GROUP - EXPERIENCE & CAPACITY 
 

PK Companies (PK) is a leader in affordable housing who gets results. As a leader in the 
Affordable Housing industry, PK has extensive experience working with local municipalities, 

state and federal agencies, and neighborhood associations to create projects that both 
leverage financial opportunities and provide housing to those most in need. 

 
PK has been in the business of creating housing solutions for over 30 years and is one of the most 
active developers of affordable housing in Michigan. We work closely with state and federal 
housing agencies. Our executives serve as leaders in several affordable housing trade 
associations and devote a significant amount of time to affordable housing advocacy. This has led 
to substantial growth, and we now own and or manage over 5,200 apartment homes within 124 
developments across seven states. Our long-term approach means we rarely sell properties; 
when we invest in a community, we do it with the intention of being neighbors for a long time. 
 
Our experience and advocacy assist us in staying connected to a dynamic affordable housing 
market. PK does not, however, focus only on regulatory, equity, or lender changes. Through our 
participation in various groups, as well as our Housing & Management Division, we stay 
connected to the needs of individuals and families we house. For example, in 2021, PK began 
actively seeking partnerships with local community organizations to bring Tenant Services to all 
Residents living within our communities. We feel this co-development project offers a unique 
opportunity to expand that impact by incorporating Housing First Model priorities into this 
development. 
 

 
 

PK Companies offers a full-service approach with a long-term ownership philosophy that 
includes construction and management. PK is a hands-on organization that has a strong 

focus on community engagement, agency partnership, curb appeal, and the ongoing 
maintenance of our communities. 



PK COMPANIES 
 

PK Companies is committed to creating partnerships that provide housing solutions to  
better fulfill the needs of our communities. We strive to add value to the areas we serve  
and enrich the lives of our residents. PK delivers answers to housing needs that address 

 the wants of their residents and strengthen the wider community. Through a comprehensive 
strategy, PK purchases, develops, and manages properties that offer opportunities for 

creative housing solutions. 
 
PK is a family-owned real estate firm based in Okemos, Michigan. It was originally formed as PK 
Housing & Management Inc. in 1981 by Ronald J. “Pete” Potterpin as a full-service property 
management company. Starting in 1990, PK began acquiring and rehabilitating affordable 
housing properties and has been building its portfolio ever since. In 1999, PK Construction 
Company was formed to act as a general contractor on PK development projects. In 2006, PK 
Development Group was formed to accommodate the growth of the development business.  
 
Today, PK Housing & Management manages a 
varied portfolio of multifamily housing and 
mixed-use developments. Although PK is a 
Michigan-based company and has historically 
done most of its business here, the company is 
not constrained by geography. In 2009, PK first 
expanded their footprint into Texas through a 
strategic partnership and have since 
completed 12 tax credit developments across 
that state. Likewise, in 2014 PK expanded west, 
developing three affordable housing 
communities in California.  
 
PK’s portfolio now consists of completed projects and managed properties in Michigan, Indiana, 
Ohio, Missouri, Alabama, Texas, and California. PK also has extensive experience working in rural 
markets as well as urban core communities like Detroit, Grand Rapids, East Lansing, and Flint.  
 
This breadth and depth of industry knowledge and expertise obtained over the last 30 years has 
combined with solid financial stability to make PK a specialist in the affordable housing sector. PK 
is an expert in developing and administering low-income tax credit developments. Furthermore, 
PK knows how to harness value in the historic preservation tax credit program, new market tax 
credit program, and opportunity zones. Over the years, PK has cultivated strong relationships 
with both national and state agencies, in particular USDA-Rural Development and HUD, as well as 
the various state and local economic development and housing agencies that they work with on a 
daily basis. It is this continuum of growth that has led to new strategic partnerships, allowing PK 
to successfully diversify its portfolio to include more urban, conventionally financed, market-rate, 
and mixed-income developments. 
 
 
 
 
 



PK DEVELOPMENT GROUP 
 

PK Companies is the parent company for three affiliated companies which provide 
development, construction, and property management services.  

 
 
PK DEVELOPMENT GROUP 
 
PK Development Group (“PK”) was formed in 2006 to accommodate the growing capacity of the 
company in the development business. PK has found its most fruitful growth opportunities and 
successful development projects through three methods: creatively using a multitude of financing 
programs, expanding our geographic footprint into new states across the country, and forming 
very strategic partnerships with both for-profit and non-profit organizations with which we share 
a common vision and principles.  
 
PK has consistently received Low Income Housing Tax Credit awards in Michigan and is a top-five 
Developer of USDA-financed multifamily housing. PK has also syndicated, received financing for, 
and successfully delivered projects using New Market Tax Credits (NMTC), Historic Rehabilitation 
Tax Credits, Tax Increment Financing (TIF), conventional financing, grants, and tax abatements. 
Several of our recent projects have used more than one of these programs to deliver a successful 
development. 
 
PK has formed strategic partnerships to deliver first-in-class developments to our communities. 
One of our most active partnerships is with Third Coast Development. Third Coast has local 
expertise and demonstrated experience in commercial and residential development and leasing 
in the Grand Rapids market. PK and Third Coast have received four tax credit awards for 
developments with 360 apartment homes and 44,000 square feet of commercial space in 2020. 
 
PK also formed a strategic partnership in Flint, with the Mott Foundation and the Uptown 
Reinvestment Corporation, to close the Flint Marketplace development, which was completed in 
2020. 
 
Our ability and flexibility to formulate unique financing structures, create strategic partnerships, 
and expand geographically have all led to the success of PK Development Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PK DEVELOPMENT GROUP LEADERS 
 
 
 

  
Chris Potterpin, President 
 
 
Chris Potterpin works with the VP of Development to implement the 
strategic goals of PK. Oversees the formation of a pipeline of real estate 
opportunities. Advocates to make more resources available for affordable 
housing and to streamline various financing programs. Coordinates PK 
Development’s activities with the leaders of other PK entities.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Jacob Horner, Vice President 
 
 
Jacob Horner solicits development opportunities. Evaluates all aspects of an 
opportunity, looking for creative opportunities to improve a deal's 
competitiveness, not only within governmental agency programs but also 
within the local market. Directs and oversees the Development Team staff 
ensuring their efforts to work toward operational goals. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Development Team Staff 
 
Coordinates due diligence collection. Prepares confidential correspondence, reports, and other 
complex documents. Creates, maintains, distributes accordingly database and spreadsheet files. 
Assists in closing documents and prepares closing memorandums for interested parties. 
Communicates within direct team and companywide to keep all parties informed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PK HOUSING & MANAGEMENT 
 
PK Housing & Management maintains a varied portfolio of both affordable and conventional 
multifamily housing comprised of 124 developments with over 5,200 units in the states of in 
Michigan, Indiana, Ohio, Missouri, Alabama, Texas, and California. PK Housing manages all of 
these properties, with the exception of only seven that are third-party management.  
 
PK has extensive experience working with USDA Rural Development, HUD, TDHCA, and MSHDA, 
and maintains a strong working relationship with each of these agencies. Most of the 
developments we manage utilize the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit and PK personnel are 
constantly trained with the latest changes in the program.  
PK Housing uses Yardi, a web-based software system that is among the best in the industry and 
is widely used by many management companies. This gives us up to the minute reporting and 
information at our sites and in our main office located in Okemos. We stay on the cutting edge of 
new developments in the industry. 
 

 
Lindsey Klug, Vice President 
 
 
Lindsey Klug works with owners, investors, corporate staff, and field staff to 
set achievable operational goals. She holds various affordable housing 
certifications including LIHTC Housing Credit Certified Professional (HCCP), 
S.T.A.R. RD Compliance, and C3P Tax Credit certification. She works with 
governmental agencies at multiple levels, including HUD, MSHDA, USDA-RD 
to ensure operational compliance with all applicable programs. 
 
 

 
 

Marea Powell, Director of Property Management 
 
 
Marea Powell holds various affordable housing certifications including 
LIHTC Housing Credit Certified Professional (HCCP), S.T.A.R. RD Compliance, 
Zeffert and Associates Managing RD Compliance, and NRH HUD Occupancy 
Training Certified. She performs administrative functions in hiring, training, 
supervising, payables, budgeting, financial oversight, marketing, 
occupancy, and governmental program compliance to achieve the 
operational goals of the company. 
 

 
Area Directors 
 
Perform all administrative functions in hiring, training, supervising, payables, budgeting, financial 
oversight, marketing, occupancy, and governmental program compliance for a portfolio of 
properties. 
 



PK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 
 
PK Construction Company, LLC (PKC) was formed in 1999 as an adjunct to PK Housing and 
Management to act as a general contractor to PK’s own development projects. This division 
enhances the development team’s unique suitability for this project. The collaboration between 
PK Development Group and PK Construction Company offers the best opportunity for value 
engineering even when an outside General Contractor is utilized.  
 
The typical scope of work in apartment construction and rehabilitation projects includes repair, 
replacement, or construction of:  
 
Exteriors including roofing, windows, siding, and doors; interiors including flooring, cabinets, 
countertops, plumbing, electrical fixtures, doors and trim, painting, and drywall repair;  
 
Building systems including HVAC, electrical, plumbing and mechanical; 
 
And, grounds including sidewalk and parking lot repair or resurfacing, parking and property 
lighting, signage, general landscaping, and new property and tenant amenities.  
 
Designated barrier-free apartment units and the accessible common areas are constructed or 
reconstructed as necessary to meet current ADA/barrier-free requirements. New offices, 
maintenance/storage, laundry buildings, bus shelters, pavilions, and picnic shelters have also 
been constructed on various project sites. 
 
 

Pete Potterpin, President 
 
 
Pete Potterpin is both the President of PK Companies and PK Construction. 
Oversees the project manager and coordinates construction activities with 
other PK entities. Attends construction draw reviews and monitors 
construction progress to ensure that the jobs are on schedule and on 
budget. 
 
 
 

 
 
CJ Wesolek, Project Manager 
 
 
CJ Wesolek oversees the day-to-day operations of assigned construction 
projects. Works directly with subcontractors to ensure quality and 
timeliness. Main point of contact with PK Housing and Management site 
staff. Works with architects and subcontractors to develop cost estimates 
and the construction budget. 
 
 



HIGHLIGHTED RECENT PROJECTS 
 
 
Grand Rapids, Michigan - Our Grand Rapids developments have been made possible by one of 
our most active partnerships with Third Coast Development. Third Coast has local expertise and 
demonstrated experience in commercial and residential development and leasing in the Grand 
Rapids market. In partnership with Third Coast Development, PK has completed two mixed-use, 
mixed-income communities and in September of 2021, we broke ground on a third mixed-use 
site, Belknap Apartments. 
 
DIAMOND PLACE APARTMENTS - Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

 
 
Diamond Place is the redevelopment of a large, blighted brownfield site on a key corridor in 
Grand Rapids into 165 apartment homes and 22,000 square feet of commercial space including 
a GFS Market, Ginza Sushi & Ramen Bar, AT&T Wireless, and Tropical Smoothie Café.  
 

Our development team worked 
closely with the community to meet 
two primary needs 1) affordable 
housing in a neighborhood where 
market rent has been increasing and 
causing gentrification and 2) a fresh-
food grocery store in a USDA-
qualified food desert. Diamond Place 
was financed with both low-income 
housing tax credits and new market 
tax credits, developed in partnership 
with Third Coast Development, and 
constructed by Pioneer Construction. 
Project Cost: $32 Million 



BELKNAP PLACE APARTMENTS - Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

 
 
Currently under construction utilizing a neighborhood-centric approach, Belknap Place 
Apartments will be a 3-story 50-unit apartment building nestled in the historic Belknap Lookout 
neighborhood of Grand Rapids. The project is a public-private partnership between the 
development team of PK Development Group and Third Coast Development, as well as the 
current owner of the property, Grand Valley State University (GVSU).  
 
Belknap Place incorporates a neighborhood-centric design so that it does not impose on the 
current neighborhood dynamic. To address current housing gaps, the project incorporates a 
project-based subsidy for eight of the units, funded by GVSU. The project was approved for a 9% 
tax credit award in 2020. Project Cost: $13 Million  
 

 



LEO & ALPINE - Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

 
 
Leo & Alpine is a transit-oriented redevelopment project situated on a formerly underutilized 
Brownfield site. The project is a mixed-income community consisting of 36 apartment homes and 
approximately 2,250 square feet of commercial space split between two storefronts. This 
development, financed with low-income housing tax credits, has increased density, as well as 
provided affordable housing and new employment opportunities along an important corridor in 
the city of Grand Rapids. 
 
Leo & Alpine was developed in partnership with Third Coast Development and was completed in 
the Spring of 2019. Project Cost: $9 Million 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



MARKETPLACE - Flint, Michigan 
 

 
The Flint Marketplace project is a redevelopment of a vacant, blighted structure into urban 
mixed-use, mixed-income housing. Located in downtown Flint, the project is helping to bolster 
both market-rate and affordable housing opportunities near employment centers of the city.  
 
The project includes 75 apartment homes, 18 townhomes, and 4,600 square feet of commercial 
space. The project is financed with low-income housing tax credits, a permanent loan from the 
MEDC Michigan Strategic Fund (MSF) and a philanthropic investment from our project partners, 
Uptown Reinvestment Corporation. PK has formed strategic partnerships in Flint with the Mott 
Foundation and the Uptown Reinvestment Corporation to make this development a reality. This 
project was completed by Flint’s own DW Lurvey Construction. Project Cost: $19.6 Million 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BAILEY CENTER - East Lansing, Michigan 

 
PK partnered with a nonprofit, Capital Area Housing Partnership, to redevelop the vacant and 
underutilized 1920-built Liberty Hyde Bailey School in East Lansing. The development includes 30 
senior apartment homes, 25 of which are affordable, as well as a 7,700-square-foot daycare 
center, a community performance art space, and several commercial office spaces on the first 
floor. 
 
The Bailey Center is financed in part by low-income housing tax credits and was made possible 
through strategic partnerships. Renovations of this building were completed in May of 2018 by PK 
Construction. Project Cost: $8.9 Million 



RAINER COURT - Detroit, Michigan 

 
Rainer Court is a historically preserved and rehabilitated 36-unit apartment building located in 
Detroit’s Midtown neighborhood and completed in 2015. The property was originally built in 1923, 
with 56 units. The property has been operating as an apartment complex since its original 
construction. The property includes approximately 1,800 square feet of garden-level retail space.  
The project was developed in coordination with Midtown Detroit Inc. 
 
Rainer Court was the first of its kind for PK Construction, completed in 2015. The company’s past 
had been in mostly moderate rehabs of rural properties, a historic rehab in Detroit’s Midtown 
was different than the usual. Project Cost: $6.5 Million 













O: 517-347-2001 | F: 517-347-2010 | info@pkhousing.com | pk-companies.com
1784 Hamilton Road, Okemos, MI 48864



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Susie Homeyer, City Secretary  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Election Order 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May 
6, 2023, election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5. 

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la 
elecci'on del 6 de mayo de 2023 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las 
posiciones 4 and 5. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
State of Texas law states that an election ordered by an authority of a political 
subdivision shall be ordered no later than the 62nd day before election day. The City 
Charter states that the Councilmembers shall order the election at 30 days before the 
election. The period of January 23, 2023, through February 17, 2023, is the period 
recommended for calling the election and posting notice of election. 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

Approve or deny the Order of Election for the May 6, 2023, election to elect two 
City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

    
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: NA 
 

Account Number: NA 
 

Amount Budgeted: NA 
 

Amount Requested: NA 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   

2/6/23



1-2 
Prescribed by Secretary of State 
Sections 3.004, 3.005, 3.006, 85.004, 85.006, 85.007 Texas Election Code   
11/2021 

ORDER OF GENERAL ELECTION FOR MUNICIPALITIES 
ORDEN DE ELECCIÓN GENERAL PARA MUNICIPOS 

 

An election is hereby ordered to be held on _____/_____/________ for the purpose of voting on: 
             (date) 
(Por la presente se ordena celebrar una elección el _____/_____/_______ con el propósito de votar sobre.)                                                                                                                                        
                                                                           (fecha) 
 
 

List Offices/Propositions/Measures on the ballot (Enúmere los puestos/proposiciones/medidas oficiales en la boleta) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekday at: 
(La votación adelantada en persona se llevará a cabo de lunes a viernes en:)  

 

The Main Early Voting Location (sitio principal de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

 

Branch Early Voting Locations (sucursal sitios de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekend at: 
(La votación adelantada en persona se llevará a cabo en el fin de semana en:) 

  

The Main Early Voting Location (sitio principal de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  

 

Branch Early Voting Locations (sucursal sitios de votación adelantada) 
Location (sitio)                                                           Hours (horas) 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 



 
Applications for ballot by mail shall be mailed to: 

(Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán enviarse a:) 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Name of Early Voting Clerk 
(Nombre del Secretario/a de la Votación Adelantada) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Address (Dirección) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
City (Ciudad)                     Zip Code (Código Postal) 

 
_____________________________________________ 
Telephone Number (Número de teléfono) 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Email Address (Dirección de Correo Electrónico) 

 
                      _____________________________________________ 
                      Early Voting Clerk’s Website (Sitio web del Secretario/a de Votación Adelantada) 
 
 
 
Applications for Ballots by Mail (ABBMs) must be received no later than the close of business on: 
(Las solicitudes para boletas que se votarán adelantada por correo deberán recibirse no más tardar 
de las horas de negocio el:) 
 
 

_____/_____/________. 
         (date)(fecha) 

 
Federal Post Card Applications (FPCAs) must be received no later than the close of business on:  
(La Tarjeta Federal Postal de Solicitud deberán recibirse no más tardar de las horas de negocio el:) 
 

_____/_____/________.   
         (date)(fecha) 
 
 
 
Issued this ________ day of _______________________, 20 ______. 
                      (day)                                 (month)                            (year) 
 
(Emitida este día __________ de ______________________, 20 ______.) 
                                  (día)                               (mes)                             (año) 
   
 

______________________________________ 
Signature of Mayor (Firma del Alcalde) 

 
 
 

_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 
 
_________________________________                            _________________________________                 
Signature of Councilperson             Signature of Councilperson 
(Firma del Concejal)                                                                    (Firma del Concejal) 



 
 
Instruction Note:  A copy of this election order must be delivered to the County 
Clerk/Elections Administrator and Voter Registrar not later than 60 days before election day.  
Nota de Instrucción: Se deberá entregar una copia de esta orden de elección al/a la Secretario(a) del 
Condado/Administrador(a) de Elecciones y el/la Registrador(a) de Votantes a más tardar 60 días 
antes del día de elección.  



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Susie Homeyer, City Secretary  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Resolution No. 730-23 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #10 
 

Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution No. 730-23, approving 
2023 Joint Election Contract between the City of Navasota, Texas, Grimes County, 
Texas and Navasota Independent School District. 

Presentación, discusión, y posible acción sobre la Resolución No. 730-23, que 
aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado 
de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
According to the Texas Election Code, Section 61.012(c), school districts must conduct 
a joint election with municipalities. The City of Navasota began this process in 2006 
and the process has worked very well. The City and Navasota I.S.D. recommend to 
contract with the Election Administrator for Grimes County in accordance with the 
Election Code, Section 31.091. The City has a mutual agreement with the County on 
the free use of election equipment and in turn the City allows the County to use the 
Navasota Center free of change for their event needs. Although a resident may vote at 
any poll that is open in Grimes County, the two main voting places will be the Navasota 
Center located at 101 Stadium Drive and the Grimes County Courthouse located at 100 
S. Main in Anderson, Texas.  Staff has provided City Council with a cost estimate of 
what the election in May 2023 is expected to cost. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve or deny Resolution No. 730-23, approving the 2023 Joint Election 
Contract between the City of Navasota, Texas, Grimes County, Texas and 
Navasota Independent School District. 

 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: General Fund 
 

Account Number: 100-582-620.01 
 

Amount Budgeted: $7,500 
 

Amount Requested: $5,974 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/6/23



RESOLUTION NO. 730-23 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2023 JOINT ELECTION CONTRACT BETWEEN 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS,  

GRIMES COUNTY, TEXAS AND NAVASOTA  

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas, the Navasota Independent School District 

and the County of Grimes, Texas, desire to enter into a 2023 Joint Election Contract 

with Rachel Walker, as the Grimes County Election Administrator. 

 

 AND WHEREAS, the City Council Navasota, Texas desires to give authorization for 

said contract, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 

herein for all purposes;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, 

TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Said City Council authorizes the 2023 Joint Contract by and among the City of 

Navasota, Texas, Navasota Independent School District and Lucy Ybarra, Grimes 

County Election Administrator of Grimes County, Texas, for the conduct and 

supervision of the Joint Election on May 6, 2023, said contract attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 13TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________ 

         BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

               

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                              “EXHIBIT A” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT  

FOR  

GENERAL ELECTION for LOCAL SUBDIVISIONS (including SCHOOLS) 

 

This contract is made and entered into this the 13th day of February, 2023, by and between the City of 

Navasota, hereinafter referred to as “Entity,” and Rachel Walker County Election Administrator of Grimes 

County, Texas. All contracting entities are in agreement that elections referenced in this contract include 

elections scheduled for May 6, 2023, as well as any resulting runoffs. All election date references include early 

voting dates.  

 

For the purpose of the above-mentioned Joint Election Agreement, all Entities agree to utilize Early Voting and 

Election Day voting locations identified by Grimes County and the Elections Administrator.  

 

Now, therefore it is agreed that a joint election will be held by the Entity and Grimes County under 

the following terms and conditions: 

 

1) The Entity will contract with the Elections Administrator of Grimes County (“the Contracting 

Officer”) to perform various responsibilities to include election staffing for Early Voting, 

Election Day, Tabulation, and Ballot related duties in connection with the election on behalf of 

each of the entities participating in the election.  

2) Each entity agrees to share equally the expense of Early Voting and Election Day polling 

locations, to include staffing, supplies, equipment, and other related cost.  
3) Each entity agrees to share equally, the expense of ballot production, programming, shipment, 

and equipment predefinition.  

4) Entities agreeing to participate in the Joint Election agree that the Elections Administrator is the 

responsible party for determining election staff, polling locations, and possible consolidation of 

said polling locations for the Joint Election being held.  

5) If one entity cancels its election, the remaining entities holding an election will be responsible for 

all election costs incurred in the Joint Election.  

6) Each entity will identify a person(s) (limit of 2) to be the point of contact for the Contracting 

Officer. This person(s) will address concerns, follow up and questions from/for the Contracting 

Officer. Said person(s) will also serve as the point of contact to receive and then distribute the 

Joint Election results on Election Day. Each entity agrees that no other staff members will be 

given results or directed questions.  

 

The Contracting Officer shall be responsible for performing the following duties in 

relation to the Joint Election for Local Subdivisions:  

 

1) Contact owners or custodians of designated polling locations to arrange use in the Joint Election.  

2) Procure and distribute all necessary election supplies: required documents, maps, supplies needed 

to operate the election, equipment, signs, and ballots.  

3) Procure and prepare all necessary equipment for the election including:  

▪ Know Ink iPad for Voter Check In,  

▪ Verity Duo: Voting Booth & Ballot Scanner, and  

▪ Controller: Election Judges operating booth. 

4) Serve as the early voting clerk and provide deputy voting clerks to assist with early voting.  

5) Arrange, notify, and host training classes for all election staff working in said Joint Election.  

6) Arrange for use of Central Counting Station, Early Voting Ballot Board, including the Ballot By 

Mail team. 

7) Publish all required notices of Logic and Accuracy Testing and Election notices, as required by 

the Secretary of State posted guidelines.  

8) Assist in the general supervision of the election and provide advisory services as requested by the 

entities participating in the election.  

 

Whereas, upon agreement of the above-stated terms of the contract for the Joint Election, 

the Entity agrees to the following conditions regarding election costs and billing:  

 



____________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

____________________________________________ 

Date 

 

City of Navasota 

Political Subdivision 

____________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

____________________________________________ 

Date 

 

Grimes County Elections Administrator    

                                                                      

1) The entity agrees to provide payment in full upon receipt of the final invoice and cost breakdown 

within 90 days of receipt.  

2) The entity agrees to receive the receipt and any additional cost evidence via email statement at the 

email address provided to the Contracting Officer by the entity. 

3) The Entity agrees that contract costs will include a 10% administrative fee to be paid directly to 

Grimes County- Elections Administration for administration and oversight of the Joint Election.   

4) Should the entity request an early voting location that is not a regularly-used location for early 

voting purposes, the requesting entity agrees to pay for all staffing and rental costs for the early 

voting period unless otherwise agreed on by the Contracting officer.  

 

The Contracting Officer agrees to provide the following:  

 

1) Immediate notice to all parties involved should any change in costs result in a higher rate of 5% 

or more of all costs related to the elections being held in the current contract year.  

2) Notice of Ballot drafts- schedule and review ballot drafts prior to ballot printing or programming 

with each entity participating in the joint election. (Said review may occur via electronic 

correspondence or, at the request of the entity, in person.)  

 

In the event of an emergency or severe circumstance such as a natural disaster, weather related 

emergencies, pandemic or health-related occurrences that could affect Grimes County, its 

voters, and employees- Grimes County reserves the right to terminate the participation of its 

personnel in the election. In such case, the county will provide all the necessary tools, 

equipment, and materials for the entity to host an election, but will not be responsible for 

staffing or administering said election. Any such determination will be made by Grimes 

County, in its sole discretion, with the input of the Texas Secretary of State.  

 

The parties hereto acknowledge that the Contracting Officer may enter a separate elections 

services contract with another political subdivision for any election conducted on the same day.  

 

APPROVED by the following parties, also identified as the participants of said election: 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #11 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Susie Homeyer, City Secretary  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits: Minutes for January 2023, Municipal Court 
Report for January 2023, Ordinance No. 1014-23, 
Ordinance No. 1015-23 and Ordinance No. 1016-23 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 
Consent agenda items are: 

A&B. Approve the minutes from January 2023 and the Municipal Court report,  
      for January 2023 

C. Approve second reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, rezoning 35.13 acres, 
more particularly described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, from A/O: 
Agriculture/Open space district to “Pecan Grove Estates PUD” a planned 
unit development. 
 

D. Approve second reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending Chapter 3 
Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and 
Freestanding Signs. 

E. Approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing 
participation with other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning 
Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023, 
authorizing the hiring of lawyers and rate experts, authorizing the City’s 
participation to the full extent permitted by law at the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas. 

 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consent agenda items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate 
discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City 
Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular 
agenda. 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



A&B: Staff has placed the minutes for January 2023 and Municipal Court report for 
January 2023 on the consent agenda for approval. 
 
C:  Staff has placed the second reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, rezoning 35.13 
acres, more particularly described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, from A/O: 
Agriculture/Open space district to “Pecan Grove Estates PUD” a planned unit 
development on the consent agenda for approval. 
 
D.  Staff has placed the second reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and 
Freestanding Signs on the consent agenda for approval. This Ordinance has been 
corrected to reflect the changes to the original first reading of the Ordinance on 
January 23, 2023. 
 
E. Staff has placed the first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing 
participation with other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy 
Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023; authorizing the hiring of 
lawyers and rate experts; and authorizing the City’s participation to the full extent 
permitted by law at the Public Utility Commission of Texas on the consent agenda for 
approval. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

Approve Consent Agenda: Approve the minutes and Municipal Court report for 
January 2023; the second reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, rezoning 35.13 
acres, more particularly described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, from A/O: 
Agriculture/Open space district to “Pecan Grove Estates PUD” a planned unit 
development; the second reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending Chapter 
3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and Freestanding 
Signs; and the first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation 
with other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy, Texas, 
Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023, authorizing the hiring of 
lawyers and rate experts, authorizing the City’s participation to the full extent 
permitted by law at the Public Utility Commission of Texas on the consent 
agenda for approval. 
 
 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/6/23



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 9, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 4:30 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

 

(Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 and Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-

Tem, Place # 5 were absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel; Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communication Director; 
Mike Mize, Police Chief; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets and Sanitation, Lupe 
Diosdado, Development Services Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Peggy 
Johnson, HR Director; Maribel Frank, Chief Financial Officer and Jennifer Reyna, Public 
Works Director. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson and Matthew Garrett. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 4:35 p.m. 
 
2.  The Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the 
Texas Flag was dispensed. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. A workshop was held on the results of the City of Navasota water, 

wastewater, and natural gas rate study conducted by NewGen Strategies & 

Solutions.  The study consisted of gathering data, working on revenue 

requirements and a 5-year financial plan.  Once the utility rate design is 

completed it would provide revenue to cover operations, future capital, 

additional personnel and debt payments and coverage. 

 



          5. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 9, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 
Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas 
on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Cary 
Bovey, Legal Counsel; Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communication Director; Mike Mize, Police 
Chief; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Peggy 
Johnson, HR Director; Maribel Frank, Chief Financial Officer and Jennifer Reyna, Public Works 
Director. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Mac Vaughn, Ethan Barcak, Chris Tucker, 
Deborah Welchel, Don Welchel, Mary Jones, Angela Bryant, Valory Barnett, Steven Richards, 
Clyde Hudson, Matt Silcox, Ella Jones, Jana Russell, Valory Barnett, Steven Richards and 
Michele Steinhauser. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn. The City Council, staff members and visitors 
then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. Staff report: 

 

a) HR Director Peggy Johnson introduced the following new employee:  Maribel 
Frank, Chief Financial Officer. 

 
 
b) Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director gave an update on Capital Improvements 

Project, the AWOS, Public Works Warehouse, Capital Improvement project for 
utilities and the Sidewalk and Streetscape project. 
 



c) There was not an update on Boards and Commissions; and  
 

d) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 
 

5. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 723-23, designating the 
persons authorized to sign checks and authorizing designated persons to access bank 
accounts for certain purposes, with noted corrections, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem 
Grant Holt and with each Councilmember that was present voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 
 
6.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve TexPool amending Resolution No. 724-
23, designating Maribel Frank, Jason B. Weeks, Susie Homeyer and Rayna Teicheira as 
the authorized representatives for the City of Navasota accounts with TexPool, seconded 
by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember that was present 
voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
7. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve TexSTAR amending Resolution No. 
725-23, designating Maribel Frank, Jason B. Weeks, Susie Homeyer and Rayna Teicheira 
as the authorized representatives for the City of Navasota accounts with TexSTAR, 
seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember that was present 
voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
8.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve designating Maribel Frank, Jason 
B. Weeks, Susie Homeyer and Rayna Teicheira as the authorized representatives for the 
City of Navasota accounts with TexasCLASS, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 
with each Councilmember that was present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
9. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 726-23, in support 
for the application of Volunteers of America to the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs for the 2023 Competitive Nine-Percent Housing Tax Credits to 
rehabilitate affordable rental housing in connection with Buckingham Gardens, seconded 
by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember that was present voting 
AYE, the motion carried. 
 
10. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve a license agreement with Grimes 
County.Net for water tower space on the City of Navasota water tower to provide 
wireless internet services to the community, with corrections noted, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember that was present voting 
AYE, the motion carried. 
 
11. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve a license agreement with Wi-Fi for 
water tower space on the City of Navasota water tower to provide wireless internet 
services to the community, with noted changes, seconded by Councilmember Bernie 
Gessner and with each Councilmember that was present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
12. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda which 
included the minutes and Municipal Court report for December 2022, seconded by 



Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember that was present voting AYE, 
the motion carried. 
 
13. The City Council met in Executive Session in accordance with Texas Government 
Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual evaluation of the City 
Manager and possible amendment to the employment agreement for the City Manager; 
and 
 
The City Council met in Executive Session in accordance with Texas Government Code, 
Section 551.074, Personnel Matters, concerning evaluation of Legal Counsel for the City 
of Navasota, and associated matters.  The time was 6:44 p.m. 
 
14.  The City Council reconvened in open session at 8:09 p.m. 
 
15.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to amend annual employment agreement with 
the City Manager with an annual base salary of $145,000, with the car allowance and 
cell phone allowance remaining the same, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 
with each Councilmember that was present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
16. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the updated engagement letter with 
Legal Counsel, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember 
that was present voting AYE, the motion carried. 
  
17. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:13 p.m. 
 
 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 11, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the Navasota 
Center, located at 101 Stadium Drive, Navasota, Texas 77868 at 10:00 a.m. on the 
above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

 

(Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communication Director; Mike Mize, Police Chief; Lupe 
Diosdado, Development Services Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Peggy 
Johnson, HR Director; Rayna Teicheira, Economic Development Director; Jennifer 
Reyna, Public Works Director; and Maribel Frank, Chief Financial Officer. 
 
VISITORS: Sidney Abney, David Aguilar, Chadler Arden, Sharon Atkinson, Lynn Ash, 
Ethan Barcak, Corrin Barrow, Marilyn Bettes, Melissa Bochat, William Bond, Eddie 
Bosse, Max Brand, Stephanie Burzynski, Gary Chaney, Connie Clements, Loy Coffey, 
Ana Cosino, Bryan Bullington, Andrea Crawford, Michael Dearing, Vanessa Burzynski, 
T. J. Green, Aaron Farmer, Sherry Fauth, Joe Fauth III, Karla Flanagan, Stacey 
Forgason, Jonathan Fuller, Yolanda Fultz, Jackson Fultz, Jon Fultz, Laurie Glameyer, 
Michelle Bobo, Ronnie Gonzales, Kenneth Graves, Karen Hale, John Henry, Kimberly 
Hertan, Elease Hill, Sivaj Senapath, Tami Hons, Kirk Surber, Justin Sandoval, Lynn 
Simmons, Julian Jenkins, Jim Jones, Trey Kirby, Cecilia Maddox, Kandis Martinez, 
Steven Martinez, Geneva Maynard, Scott McDonald, Blair Meekins, Chris Mires, Jared 
Morris, Jeff Murray, Stu Musick, Melanie Nixon, Brandon Northcut, Michael Ogorchock, 
Jared Patout, Mike Pederson, Andrew Pendleton, Bryan Reece, Maegan Rich, Maggie 
Rico, Keith Rodgers, Henry Sanders, Suzan Sechelski, Cody Sechelski, Colleen 
Sechelski, Brittany Sechelski, Sharon Coffey, Terri Seiter, Mary Ann Shiflett, Meribeth 
Shimshack, Cassidy Smart, Marcie Snyder, Roby Somerford, Brad Stafford, Justin 
Stapleton, Cody Stelter, Tracy Stone, Jarred Taylor, Cole Thompson, Nancy Vaditto, 
Mac Vaughn, Audrey Vogel, Barbara Walker, Bridgette Wellendorf, Dianna 
Westmoreland, Patty Whitney, Erin Wilhite, Tim Wolff, Anne Marie Wood, Darlene 
Wood, Lucy Ybarra and Matthew Ybarra. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 



 

A quorum of the City Council attended the State of the City Address given by 
Mayor Bert Miller, Judge Joe Fauth, Superintendent Stu Musick and Retail Coach 
Aaron Farmer. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 23, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council Chambers, 
Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 4:45 p.m., Navasota, Texas on the above date 
with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Cary Bovey, Legal 
Counsel; Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communication Director; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets and 
Sanitation; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Maribel Frank, Chief Financial Officer; 
Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director and Rayna Teicheria, Economic Development Director. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 4:45 p.m. 
 
2.  Remarks of Visitors:  None. 
 
3.  Economic Development Director Rayna Teicheira presented the City Council with the 
Downtown Assessment Report that was conducted by Texas Downtown (TXDT).  The report 
provided the community, staff and City Council with a guide of how to continue to support 
downtown businesses, encourage tourism, and begin thinking about long-term planning to 
continue a positive trajectory and success in downtown Navasota. 
 

            4. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 5:15 p.m. 

 

 
 

_________________________ 

                                 BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JANUARY 23, 2023 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 
Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas 
on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Cary 
Bovey, Legal Counsel; Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communication Director; Mike Mize, Police 
Chief; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Maribel 
Frank, Chief Financial Officer; Jennifer Reyna, Public Works Director; Rayna Teicheira, 
Economic Development Director; Jose Coronilla, Assistant Public Works Director; and Evette 
Fannin, Grants Coordinator. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Mac Vaughn, Michele Steinhauser, C. R. 
Greenwood, Jr., Dalton Greenwood, Brandon Goodyk, James Harris, Jim Hassell and Dorothy 
Hassell. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn. The City Council, staff members and visitors 
then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. Staff report: 

 

a) City Secretary Susie M. Homeyer gave an update on the May 6, 2023 City 
election.  The sign-up period for a place on the ballot is from January 18, 2023 
through February 17, 2023. 

 
b) Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt gave an update on the latest Planning and Zoning 

meeting; and  
 

c) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 



5. A public hearing was held regarding a zoning change application submitted by 
Crosstrails Development, LLC for the property located in the A0055-0 D. Tyler Abstract 
adjacent to Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 2.  The zoning change application requests to 
change the zoning from A/O: Agricultural/Open Space District to Pecan Grove Estates 
PUD, a planned unit development, for the development of a 35.13-acre single dwelling 
unit subdivision.  The property affected is legally described as A0055-0 D. Tyler , Tract 
4, Acres 35.13, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas  77868.  Mayor Bert Miller 
opened the public hearing at 6:12 p.m.  Development Services Director Lupe Diosdado 
briefly went over the project.  With no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller 
closed the public hearing at 6:21 p.m.  
 
6.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt move to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1014-
23, approving a zoning change application by Crosstrails Development, LLC to change 
the zoning from A/O: Agricultural/Open Space District to Pecan Grove Estates PUD, a 
planned unit development, for the development of a 35.13-acre single dwelling unit 
subdivision.  The property affected is legally described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, 
Acres 35.13, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas 77868, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 
 
7. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1015-
23, amending Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and 
excluding Freestanding Signs, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with 
each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
8.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 728-23, regarding the 
requested annexation submitted by James C. Hassell for a 1.310 acre tract of land in the 
James Whiteside Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, setting a date, time 
and place for a public hearing on a proposed annexation of said property by the City of 
Navasota, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember 
voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
9.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to hire Public Management for grant administration 
services for the 2023 Downtown Revitalization Program administered through the Texas 
Department of Agriculture and adding a venue restriction in Grimes County, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 
 
10. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to hire Public Management for grant administration 
and planning services for the Resilient Communities Program grant administered through 
the General Land Office and adding a venue restriction in Grimes County, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 
 
11. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to accept the Navasota Police Department’s 2022 
Racial Profiling Data Report, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 



12.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items which 
include the following: (a) Authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with R. 
W. Harden & Associates to provide hydrogeologic consulting services and performing a 
groundwater availability study for the City of Navasota in the amount of $22,400.00;  
(b) Approve Resolution No. 726-23 in support of applying for the Bullet-Resistant Shields 
grant; (c) Approve Resolution No. 727-23 accepting infrastructure at Pecan Lakes, Phase 
4; (d) Approve the Final Project & Finance Plan for the City of Navasota Tax Increment 
Re-investment Zone One; (e) Approve a contract between the City of Navasota and Zima 
Corporation in the amount of $73,602.00 for the purchase of materials and associated 
items related to emergency repairs to the clarifier and other equipment at the City’s 
Wastewater Treatment Plant and (f) Approve a contract between the City of Navasota 
and Teal Services LLC in the amount of $47,832 for the installation of the replacement 
clarifier, as authorized by Section 252.022(a)(3), Texas Local Government Code, as a 
procurement necessary because of unforeseen damage to public machinery, equipment, 
or other property caused by the December 2022 winter weather, seconded by 
Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
  
17. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



                                    O F F I C E   O F   C O U R T   A D M I N I S T R A T I O N

                                             T E X A S   J U D I C A L   C O U N C I L

                                              Official Municipal Court Monthly Report

                     Month   January             Year   2023

           Municipal Court for the City of  NAVASOTA

           Presiding Judge   PATRICIA GRUNER

                      If new, date assumed office _________________

     Court Mailing Address   200 E. MCALPINE

                      City   NAVASOTA, TXZip    77868

              Phone Number   936-825-6268

                Fax Number   936-825-7280

      Court's Public Email   RJESSIE@NAVASOTATX.GOV

           Court's Website   http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV

 

   THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE REFLECTION OF THE RECORDS OF THIS COURT.

   Prepared by _________________________________________________________________

          Date _____________________    Phone: (936) 825-6268

  PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM NO LATER THAN 20 DAYS FOLLOWING THE END OF THE MONTH REPORTED TO:

                         OFFICE OF COURT ADMINISTRATION

                                 P.O. BOX 12066

                                   AUSTIN, TX

                                   78711-2066

                             PHONE: (512) 463-1625

                              Fax: (512) 936-2423

http://WWW.NAVASOTATX.GOV


 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    1

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2023                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

1. Total Cases Pending First of Month:                     |        702|          0|         23|        277|         61|        107|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Active Cases                                         |        281|          0|          5|         25|         41|         26|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Inactive Cases                                       |        421|          0|         18|        252|         20|         81|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

2. New Cases Filed                                         |        233|          2|         14|         18|         11|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

3. Cases Reactivated                                       |         15|          0|          0|          5|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

4. All Other Cases Added                                   |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

5. Total Cases on Docket                                   |        529|          2|         19|         48|         52|         26|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

6. Dispositions Prior to Court Appearance or Trial:        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Uncontested Dispositions                             |         91|          0|          6|          2|          2|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          4|          0|          0|          1|          0|          1|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

7. Dispositions at Trial:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. Convictions:                                         |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) Guilty Plea or Nolo Contendere                     |         50|          0|          0|          5|          2|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          1|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     3) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. Acquittals:                                          |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     1) By the Court                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

     2) By the Jury                                        |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. Dismissed by Prosecution                             |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    2

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CRIMINAL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------------------------------+-----------------------------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |              TRAFFIC              |            NON-TRAFFIC            |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2023                              |NON-PARKING|  PARKING  |  CITY ORD | PENAL CODE| STATE LAW |  CITY ORD |

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

8. Compliance Dismissals:                                  |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   a. After Driver Safety Course                           |          9|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   b. After Deferred Disposition                           |          5|          0|          0|          0|          0|          3|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   c. After Teen Court                                     |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   d. After Tobacco Awareness Course                       |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   e. After Treatment for Chemical Dependency              |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|          0|          0|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   f. After Proof of Financial Responsibility              |          4|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

   g. All Other Transportation Code Dismissals             |          4|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

9. All Other Dispositions                                  |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

10. Total Cases Disposed                                   |        167|          0|          6|          9|          4|          4|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

11. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |         28|          0|          0|         13|          1|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

12. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |        768|          2|         31|        286|         68|        103|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |        334|          2|         13|         26|         47|         22|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |        434|          0|         18|        260|         21|         81|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

13. Show Cause Hearings Held                               |         11|          0|          0|          1|          1|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

14. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    a. After Trial                                         |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

                                                           +-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|          0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+-----------+



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    3

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CIVIL SECTION

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                            |                |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2023                              |  TOTAL CASES   |

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

1.  Total Cases Pending First of Month:                    |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

2.  New Cases Filed                                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

3.  Cases Reactivated                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

4.  All Other Cases Added                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

5.  Total Cases on Docket                                  |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

6.  Uncontested Civil Fines or Penalties                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

7.  Default Judgments                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

8.  Agreed Judgments                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

9.  Trial/Hearing by Judge/Hearing Officer                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

10. Trial by Jury                                          |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

11. Dismissed for Want of Prosecution                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

12. All Other Dispositions                                 |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

13. Total Cases Disposed                                   |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

14. Cases Placed on Inactive Status                        |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

15. Total Cases Pending End of Month:                      |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. Active Cases                                        |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Inactive Cases                                      |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+

16. Cases Appealed:                                        |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                           +----------------+

    a. After Trial                                         |               0|

                                                           +----------------+

    b. Without Trial                                       |               0|

-----------------------------------------------------------+----------------+



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    4

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

JUVENILE/MINOR ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                  |                |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2023                                                    |     TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

1. Transportation Code Cases Filed                                               |               8|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

2. Non-driving Alcoholic Beverage Code Cases Filed                               |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

3. Driving Under the Influence of Alcohol Cases Filed                            |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

4. Drug Paraphernalia Cases Filed                                                |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

5. Tobacco Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

6. Truancy Cases Filed                                                           |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

7. Education Code (Except Failure to Attend) Cases Filed                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

8. Violation of Local Daytime Curfew Ordinance Cases Filed                       |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

9. All Other Non-traffic Fine-only Cases Filed                                   |               2|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

10. Transfer to Juvenile Court:                                                  |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Mandatory Transfer                                                          |               0|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Discretionary Transfer                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

11. Accused of Contempt and Referred to Juvenile Court (Delinquent Conduct)      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

12. Held in Contempt by Criminal Court (Fined and/or Denied Driving Privileges)  |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

13. Juvenile Statement Magistrate Warning:                                       |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  a. Warnings Administered                                                       |               1|

                                                                                 +----------------+---------------------------------

  b. Statements Certified                                                        |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

14. Detention Hearings Held                                                      |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

15. Orders for Non-secure Custody Issued                                         |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------

16. Parent Contributing to Nonattendance Cases Filed                             |               0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+---------------------------------



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    5

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

COURT  NAVASOTA MUNICIPAL COURT                                                   |                | NUMBER REQUESTS |

MONTH  January     YEAR  2023                                                     |  NUMBER GIVEN  |   FOR COUNSEL   |

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

1. Magistrate Warnings:                                                           |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                         |               8|XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                   |               0|                0|

                                                                                  +----------------+-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                     |               0|                0|

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------+----------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

2. Arrest Warrants Issued:                                                                         |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Class C Misdemeanors                                                                          |               42|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Class A and B Misdemeanors                                                                    |                4|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Felonies                                                                                      |                1|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

3. Capiases Pro Fine Issued                                                                        |                7|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

4. Search Warrants Issued                                                                          |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

5. Warrants for Fire, Health and Code Inspections Filed                                            |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

6. Examining Trials Conducted                                                                      |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

7. Emergency Mental Health Hearings Held                                                           |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

8. Magistrate's Order for Emergency Protection Issued                                              |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

9. Magistrate's Orders for Ignition Interlock Device Issued                                        |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

10. All Other Magistrates's Orders Issued Requiring Conditions for Release on Bond                 |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

11. Drivers's License Denial, Revocation or Suspension Hearings Held                               |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

12. Disposition of Stolen Property Hearings Held                                                   |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

13. Peace Bond Hearings Held                                                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    6

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ADDITIONAL ACTIVITY

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|      TOTAL      |

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

14. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Community Service:                            |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Partial Satisfaction                                                                          |                0|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Full Satisfaction                                                                             |                1|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

15. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Satisfied by Jail Credit                                   |               14|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

16. Cases in Which Fine and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                       |                0|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

17. Amount of Fines and Court Costs Waived for Indigency                                           |            $0.00|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------

18. Fines, Court Costs and Other Amounts Collected:                                                |XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  a. Kept by City                                                                                  |       $24,955.63|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  b. Remitted to State                                                                             |       $15,205.00|

                                                                                                   +-----------------+--------------

  c. Total                                                                                         |       $40,160.63|

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------+-----------------+--------------



 2/06/2023 05:32 PM                           OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL COURT MONTHLY REPORT                                     Page:    7

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 

Run By:             rjessie

Report Type:        Summary

Date Range:          1/01/2023 -  1/31/2023

Finalize Report:    Yes

Correction:         No

      *** END OF REPORT ***



ORDINANCE NO. 1014-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE 35.13 ACRES, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A0055-0 D TYLER, TRACT 4, FROM 
A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO “PECAN GROVE 
ESTATES PUD” A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILIY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on the 15th of December 2023, property owner Crosstrails 

Development, LLC, filed a petition requesting the rezoning of 35.13 acres more 
particularly described as A0055-0 D TYLER, TRACT 4, ACRES 35.13, and legally described 
by metes and bounds on Exhibit “A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein for 
all purposes pertinent, from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to “Pecan Grove Estates 
PUD” a planned unit development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the rezoning request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 12th day of January 2023, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on the 
occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 
meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was 
held; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property is shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein for all purposes pertinent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the “Pecan Grove Estates PUD: Concept Plan” is also attached hereto 
as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent, outlining the 
requirements and standards of the “Pecan Grove Estates PUD” a Planned Unit 
Development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the City Council 
of the City of Navasota that it is in the best interest and to the benefit of the residents of 
the City of Navasota, that the said property be rezoned from A/O Agriculture Open Space 
District to Pecan Grove Estates PUD a Planned Unit Development; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 23rd day of January 2023, after notice as required by law, a 
public hearing was held before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on the 
occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to present 
arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was held; 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the property legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit “B” from A/O 
Agriculture Open Space District to “Pecan Grove Estates PUD” a Planned Unit 
Development. Unless otherwise provided for or modified by Exhibit “C”, the property 
located within the Pecan Grove Estates PUD area shall conform to the provisions of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance and all other applicable ordinances. 
 
SECTION 2. If any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this Ordinance is 
held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, 
approval, and adoption on second reading. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 23RD DAY OF 
JANUARY 2023. 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 13th DAY OF 
FEBRUARY 2023. 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



Exhibit "A"





 
 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Pecan Grove Estates 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit “C” 

 

Pecan Grove Estates PUD: Development Standards  

  

  

A. Standards for Residential lots: 

Subdivision Homeowner’s Association  

Pecan Grove will have an HOA which will be responsible for common areas of the 

subdivision, regulate parking off the street, provide for design covenant 

review/construction finishes.    

Permitted Uses   

A. Single dwelling units   

B. Temporary construction buildings for use incidental to permitted 

construction work on the premises.  Such buildings must be removed upon 

completion or abandonment of construction.     

C. Real Estate sales offices during the development and sales period for 

subdivision is permitted, but not to exceed two (2) years after completion 

of subdivision.  

D. Accessory units, customarily incidental to the above uses, and 

located on the same lot not involving the conduct of retail business except 

as allowed by the Zoning Ordinance, and provided that any accessory 

structure shall be located not less than five (5) feet from any side or rear 

lot line.  

E. Parkland and open space  

F. Water supply, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and similar utility facilities  

  

Additional Design Guidelines  

A. 4’ Sidewalks shall be included within the dedicated non-pavement 

right-of-way on both sides of all streets and on one side in cul-de-sacs.  

B. Street cross sections 2.52% instead of the standard 3%.  

C. Residential streets will serve more than 24 dwelling units.  

D. Cul-de-sac’s will be longer than 400-feet in length and will have 50-

foot radius right of way and a 40-foot radius pavement.  

E. Looped residential streets will not terminate in residential collectors, 

will also serve more than 24 dwelling units.  

F. Block lengths will be greater than 1,200 linear feet.  

  



Development Standards  

A. Height Restrictions  

i. Thirty-five (35) feet high is the maximum height including roof 

gables, chimneys, vent stacks, or other mechanical equipment  

B. Building Setbacks  

i. Front setback:  There shall be a front setback having a depth of 

not less than twenty (20) feet.  

ii. Rear setback: There shall be a rear setback having a depth of 

not less than ten  

(10) feet.  

iii. Side Setback: There shall be side setbacks, on each side, having 

a width of no less than five (5) feet. When abutting a street, the 

minimum side setback shall be at least sixteen (16) feet (Street 

Side Setback).  

iv. Cul-de-sac and knuckles shall have a minimum front setback of 

twenty (20) feet.  

C. Lot Dimensions  

i. Lot Area for Single Dwelling Unit minimum shall be 6,000 square 

feet  

ii. Lot Width for Single Dwelling Unit shall be a minimum of fifty 

(50) feet wide iii. Lot Depth shall average a minimum of one 

hundred (100) feet in depth between the side lot lines  

D. Density  

i. The maximum number of single dwelling units (DUs), shall not 

exceed 6 units per acre  

E. Parking  

i. Two on-site parking spaces per single dwelling shall be required  

F. Exterior Lighting  

i. All Street Lighting and Exterior Lighting of the dwellings shall be 
designed to direct light down onto the site and away from 
neighboring property.  Lighting shall be designed to include cut-
off shielding to minimize light pollution.  

G. Landscape Standards  

i. Landscape designs shall be prepared to enhance the visual 

appeal of the built environment, screen undesirable views, 

strengthen the pedestrian scale, provide a buffer between auto 

and pedestrian environments, help define the site, provide 

congruency with the existing neighborhood, and break up large 

areas of hard surface.  



ii. Re-naturalization of all areas disturbed by the construction of the 

site and buildings is required. Re-naturalizing may include the 

following native plant materials: trees, shrubs, grasses, forbs.  

iii. Development shall minimize potable water consumption for 

irrigation.  

Reductions can be attributed to any combination of the following 

items:  

1. Predominate use (greater than fifty (50) percent) native plant 

species.  

2. Efficient irrigation systems (Water Sense labeled irrigation 

controllers, rain guards, check valves, drip irrigation, etc.).  

3. Use of captured rainwater for irrigation. iv. Where landscaping is 

intended to provide a visual screen, the species, quantity, maturity 

(size), and spacing of the initial plantings shall be sufficient to provide 

a functional screen within a single growing season.  

v. Landscaping shall be completed within three months of completion 
of home construction. Exceptions for weather delays to landscape 
completion may be considered.  

vi. No evergreen tree with a mature width greater than twenty (20) feet 

shall be planted within fifteen (15) feet of a hardscaped area.  

H. Mobile homes and manufactured homes are not permitted in this 

District.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. 1015-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 3.06 SIGNS, SECTION 3.06.010     
PERMISSIBLE SIGNS AND REQUIREMENTS, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING 
FREEWAY AND FREESTANDING SIGNS; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; FINDING PROPER NOTICE 
OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTIFICATION OF 
ADOPTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 
has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good government, peace 
and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota previously adopted certain 
regulations relating to signs; and  

WHEREAS,  the City Council desires to amend certain regulations applicable to 
signs; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best interest 
of the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein below; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS 
 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible signs 
and requirements, (5) Freeway sign, (B) Required condition, (ii) of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(ii) Allowed within 400 feet of State Highway 6 and State Highway 105 E/249. 
 



SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the United 
States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as hereafter 
amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this 
Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, which 
are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of 
the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City whether codified or 
uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 

 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be considered by 
the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with applicable law, prior to 
the time designated for meeting.  

 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 23RD DAY OF JANUARY, 2023. 
 
                                                                             
                                                         __________________________ 
                                                                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 



 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 13TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2023. 
 
                                                                       
                                                          __________________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #11E 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  February 13, 2023  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Ordinance No. 1016-23 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM #11E 
 
Approve on the first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation 
with Entergy Service Area Cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the 
Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023 and authorizing the hiring of lawyers 
and rate experts. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Once again, City Council is requested to authorize municipal participation in regulatory 
rate proceedings involving Entergy Texas, Inc. ("ETI") before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas ("PUCT"). The Steering Committee has long played a crucial role 
in limiting ETI"s various requested rate increases to reasonable levels. 
 
Cities have exclusive original jurisdiction over rates, operations, and services of an 
electric utility in areas in the municipality. Additionally, cities have standing in each case 
before the PUCT that relates to an electric utility providing service in the municipality. 
 
ETI is expected to litigate rate change requests in various proceedings before the PUC 
or before municipalities in 2023, which may include (1) a base rate case, (2) rate 
proceedings or cost adjustments such as a transmission cost recovery rider, a 
distribution cost recovery rider, a generation cost recovery rider, energy efficiency cost 
recovery factor, or hurricane restoration cost or offset true-ups, and (3) various fuel cost 
refunds or surcharges and reconciliations. Also, ETI is expected to file a statement of 
intent to increase its base rates with municipalities and the PUCT in 2023. They are 
scheduled to file fuel factor proceedings at the PUCT in February and August of 2023, 
and may file other fuel proceedings to reconcile, refund, or surcharge fuel charges. 
Additionally, ETI is expected to file its annual proceeding with the PUC to recover costs 
incurred in association with its Energy Efficiency Plan as well as reconcile past costs. 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



Cities have the statutory right to set fair and reasonable rates for both ETI and 
customers within their cities. Each city is entitled to reimbursement by the utility of their 
reasonable rate case expenses to participate in cases that are deemed rate 
proceedings pursuant to the Texas Utility Code Section 33.023. 
 
In previous years, the City of Navasota has participated with other cities to intervene in 
ETI's various rate filings related to the various fuel cost surcharges and reconciliations, 
any interim or incremental surcharge proceedings or surcharge adjustments, and for 
any base rate adjustment proceedings or cost of service adjustments on file with the 
PUC or with municipalities. The law firm, Lawton Law Firm P.C. has represented cities 
regarding their ETI rate matters before local regulatory authorities and the PUCT as 
well as with any court of law. They may employ rate experts as are recommended by 
the Cities' Steering Committee to intervene in fuel or rate related proceedings at the 
PUCT concerning ETI's rates charged to Texas customers. 
 
The Steering Committee of Cities continues to play a crucial role in limiting ETI’s various 
requested rate increases to reasonable revenue levels. ETI filed a base rate case in 
2022 with is expected to be resolved by a settlement in the coming weeks. ETI originally 
requested $131.4 million or 11.2% base rate increase. The parties’ agreement in 
principle authorizes a $54 million or 4.6% increase over current base rates. The 
Steering Committee of Cities efforts contributed significantly to reducing ETI’s initial 
proposal by 58.9%. Therefore, staff recommends approval of the first reading of 
Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area cities 
in matter concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 
2023; authorizing the hiring of lawyers and rate experts; and authorizing the City of 
Navasota’s participation to the full extent permitted by law at the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas. 
  

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
Approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation with 
other Entergy service area cities in matter concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the 
Public Utility Commission of Texas (“PUCT”) in 2023; authorizing the hiring of 
lawyers and rate experts; and authorizing the City of Navasota’s participation to 
the full extent permitted by law at the PUCT. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda. 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

2/6/23



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1016-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER 
ENTERGY SERVICE AREA CITIES IN MATTERS CONCERNING 
ENTERGY TEXAS, INC. AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY 
COMMISSION OF TEXAS IN 2023; AUTHORIZING THE 
HIRING OF LAWYERS AND RATE EXPERTS; AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION TO THE FULL EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY LAW AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
OF TEXAS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING COMPLIES WITH 
THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; AND DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

  
 WHEREAS, Cities have exclusive original jurisdiction over rates, 
operations, and services of an electric utility in areas in the municipality pursuant 
to Tex. Util. Code § 33.001; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have standing in each case before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas that relates to an electric utility providing service in the 
municipality pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 33.025; and 
 

WHEREAS, Entergy Texas, Inc. (“ETI” or “Company”) is expected to 
litigate rate change requests in various proceedings before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas (“Commission”) or before municipalities in 2023, which may 
include (1) a base rate case, (2) rate proceedings or cost adjustments such as a 
transmission cost recovery rider, a distribution cost recovery rider, a generation 
cost recovery rider, energy efficiency cost recovery factor, or hurricane restoration 
cost or offset true-ups, (3) and various fuel cost refunds or surcharges and 
reconciliations; and 
 

WHEREAS, ETI is scheduled to file fuel factor proceedings at the 
Commission in February and August 2023, and may file other fuel proceedings to 
reconcile, refund, or surcharge fuel charges; and 
 

WHEREAS, ETI is expected to file its annual proceeding with the 
Commission to recover costs incurred in association with its Energy Efficiency Plan 
as well as reconcile past costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have the statutory right to set fair and reasonable rates 
for both the Company and customers within Cities; and 
 



 2 

 WHEREAS, Cities are entitled to reimbursement by the utility of their 
reasonable rate case expenses to participate in cases that are deemed rate 
proceedings pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 33.023. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City of Navasota shall participate with other Cities to 
intervene in ETI’s various rate filings related to the various fuel cost surcharges 
and reconciliations, any interim or incremental surcharge proceedings or surcharge 
adjustments, and for any base rate adjustment proceedings or cost of service 
adjustments on file with the Commission or with municipalities in 2023. 
 

SECTION 2. The City of Navasota employs the Lawton Law Firm P.C. to 
represent the City regarding the ETI rate matters before local regulatory 
authorities and the Commission and any court of law and authorizes counsel to 
employ rate experts as are recommended by the Cities’ Steering Committee to 
intervene in fuel or rate related proceedings at the Commission concerning ETI’s 
rates charged to Texas customers. 

 
 SECTION 3. All such actions shall be taken pursuant to the direction of the 
Cities’ Steering Committee. Cities’ Steering Committee shall have authority to 
retain rate consultants and lawyers. Cities’ Steering Committee shall direct the 
actions of Cities’ representatives in the above proceedings. The Steering 
Committee is directed to obtain reimbursement from ETI of all reasonable 
expenses associated with participation in said proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 4. The meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in all 
things conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
 SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of 
its passage. 
 
  
PASSED ON FIRST READING by _______ vote of the City Council of the 
City of Navasota, Texas, this 13th day of FEBRUARY 2023. 
 
 
                                                                  __________________________ 
                                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
 



 3 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
     
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING by _______ vote of the City Council of 
the City of Navasota, Texas, this 27th day of FEBRUARY 2023. 
 
 
                                                                  __________________________ 
                                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Presentation to the Navasota Police Department Chief of Police by Grimes County Crime Stoppers [Connie Clements]
(b) Introduction of two new employees [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]
(c) Years of service award - Public Works employee, Rodrigo Hernandez (10 Years) [Peggy Johnson, HR Director]
(d) Board and Commission update [City Council]
(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 Years of Service Award - Rodrigo Hernandez
	 Planning Calendar

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 1017-23, approving an annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, 77868. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Ordinance No. 1017-23

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on an interlocal cooperation agreement between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and J&H Navasota Development, LLC, for the improvement of County Road 424. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Interlocal Cooperation Agreement - CR 424

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action approving Resolution No. 729-23, in support for the application of Navasota Manor APTS to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for the 2023 Competitive Nine-Percent Housing Tax Credits to rehabilitate affordable rental housing in connection with Navasota Manor. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 Resolution No. 729-23
	 Scope of work
	 PK Navasota Manor LP - Resume

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May 6, 2023 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5. [Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary]
Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la elecci'on del 6 de mayo de 2023 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las posiciones 4 and 5.
	 Order of Election

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Resolution No. 730-23, approving a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota Independent School District. [Susie Homeyer, City Secretary]
Presentaci&oacute;n, discusi&oacute;n, y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la Resoluci&oacute;n No. 730-23, que aprueba un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota.

	 Resolution No. 730-23
	 Election Cost Estimate

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A&B.  Approve the minutes from January 2023 and the Municipal Court Report for January 2023.
C. Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 1014-23, rezoning 35.13 acres, more particularly described as A0055-0 D. Tyler, Tract 4, from A/O: Agriculture/Open space district to 'Pecan Groves Estates PUD' a planned unit development.
D. Approve second reading of Ordinance No. 1015-23, amending Chapter 3 Building regulations, Article 3.06 Signs related to Freeway and Freestanding Signs.
E. Approve first reading of Ordinance No. 1016-23, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2023, authorizing the hiring of lawyers and rate experts, authorizing the City's participation to the full extent permitted by law at the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

	 Minutes - 01-09-2023 - Special
	 Minutes - 01-09-2023
	 Minutes - 01-11-2023
	 Minutes - 01-23-2023 - Special
	 Minutes - 01-23-2023
	 Municipal Court Report for 01/31/2023
	 Ordinance No. 1014-23
	 Ordinance No. 1015-23
	 AR - Participation in Entergy Steering Committee
	 Steering Committee Ord No 1016-23


	Name of Early Voting Clerk: Rachel Walker
	Address Dirección: P. O. Box 375
	City Ciudad: Anderson, Texas
	Zip Code Código Postal: 77830
	Telephone Number Número de teléfono: 936-873-4422
	Email Address Dirección de Correo Electrónico: elections@grimescountytexas.gov
	Early Voting Clerks Website Sitio web del Secretarioa de Votación Adelantada: grimescountytexas.gov
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot: To elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 2: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 3: Elegir dos miembros de concilio de la ciudad para Positions 4 y 5
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 4: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 5: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 6: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 7: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 8: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 9: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 10: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 11: 
	List of Office/Propositions/Measures on the ballot 12: 
	Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekday at:: Grimes County Courthouse,100 S. Main, Anderson
	Hours: Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
	Branch Early Voting Locations: The Navasota Center - 101 Stadium Drive
	Hours (horas): Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
	Branch Early Voting Locations 2: Navasota, Texas  77868
	Hours (horas) 2: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 3: 
	Hours (horas) 3: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 4: 
	Hours (horas) 4: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 5: 
	Hours (horas) 5: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 6: 
	Hours (horas) 6: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 7: 
	Hours (horas) 7: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 8: 
	Hours (horas) 8: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 9: 
	Hours (horas) 9: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 10: 
	Hours (horas) 10: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 11: 
	Hours (horas) 11: 
	Hours (horas) 12: 
	Early voting by personal appearance will be conducted each weekend at:: 
	Hours (horas) 13: 
	Hours (horas) 14: 
	Print: 
	Reset: 
	mes: Febrero
	dia1: 06
	mes1: 05
	ano1: 2023
	year: 2023
	Branch Early Voting Locations 12: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 13: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 14: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 15: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 16: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 17: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 18: 
	Branch Early Voting Locations 19: 
	Hours (horas) 15: 
	Hours (horas) 16: 
	Hours (horas) 17: 
	Hours (horas) 18: 
	Hours (horas) 19: 
	Hours (horas) 20: 
	month2: 05
	day2: 06
	year2: 2023
	month3: 05
	day3: 12
	year3: 2023
	ano: 23
	día: 13th
	day: 06
	daya: 13th
	month: 05
	montha: February
	yeara: 23


